
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Markets Committee 

 
Date: THURSDAY, 28 FEBRUARY 2013 

Time: 1.45 pm 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, 2ND FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

 
Members: Hugh Morris (Chairman) 

Michael Hudson (Deputy 
Chairman) 
Alex Bain-Stewart 
Deputy John Bennett 
Mark Boleat 
John Brewster 
Nigel Challis 
John Chapman 
Deputy Stella Currie 
Alex Deane 
Peter Dunphy 
Deputy Robin Eve 
Deputy Bill Fraser 
Deputy Stanley Ginsburg 
Deputy Pauline Halliday 
Brian Harris 
 

Michael Henderson-Begg 
Deputy Henry Jones 
Deputy Alastair King 
Deputy Keith Knowles 
Anthony Llewelyn-Davies 
Robert Merrett 
Deputy Joyce Nash 
Michael Page 
Chris Punter 
Elizabeth Rogula 
Alderman Sir Michael Savory 
Deputy Dr Giles Shilson 
John Spanner 
Alderman Sir John Stuttard 
James Tumbridge 
Vacancy 
 

 
 
 
Enquiries: Rakesh Hira 

 tel. no.: 020 7332 1408 
rakesh.hira@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Lunch will be served in the Guildhall Club at 1pm  

 
 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



2 
 

AGENDA 

 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
3. PUBLIC MINUTES 
 

 To agree the public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 30 January 2013 
(copy attached).  

 For Decision 
 (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
 

4. ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY AT SMITHFIELD MARKET 
 

 Report of the Director of Markets and Consumer Protection (copy attached).  
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 5 - 18) 

 
 

5. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
7. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 MOTION: That under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of exempt 
information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
 
 

Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda 
 
8. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 
 

 To agree the non-public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 30 January 
2013 (copy attached).  

 For Decision 
 (Pages 19 - 22) 

 
 

9. SMITHFIELD LEASES 
 

 Report of the Director of Markets & Consumer Protection (To Follow). 
 

 For Decision 



3 
 

10. WRITE-OFF OF BAD DEBT - SEATEK (UK) LTD 
 

 Report of the Director of Markets and Consumer Protection (copy attached).  
 For Decision 
 (Pages 23 - 24) 

 
 

11. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
 
12. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



MARKETS COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 30 January 2013  
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Markets Committee held at Guildhall, EC2 on 
Wednesday, 30 January 2013 at 11.30am 

 
Present 
 
Members: 
Hugh Morris (Chairman) 
Michael Hudson (Deputy Chairman) 
Deputy John Bennett 
Mark Boleat 
John Brewster 
Nigel Challis 
John Chapman 
Deputy Stella Currie 
Alex Deane 
Peter Dunphy 
Deputy Robin Eve 
 

Deputy Stanley Ginsburg 
Deputy Henry Jones 
Anthony Llewelyn-Davies 
Deputy Joyce Nash 
Michael Page 
Elizabeth Rogula 
Alderman Sir Michael Savory 
Deputy Dr Giles Shilson 
John Spanner 
Alderman Sir John Stuttard 
James Tumbridge 
 

 
Officers: 
Rakesh Hira - Town Clerk's Department 

Peter Lisley - Town Clerk's Department 

Paul Hickson - Comptroller & City Solicitor's Department 

Debbie Howard - Chamberlain's Department 

Julie Smith - Chamberlain's Department 

Andrew Wild - City Surveyor's Department 

David Smith - Director of Markets & Consumer Protection 

Malcolm Macleod - Markets and Consumer Protection Department 

Robert Wilson - Markets and Consumer Protection Department 

Donald Perry - Markets and Consumer Protection Department 

Julie Gibbs - Markets and Consumer Protection Department 

 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
Apologies were received from Alex Bain-Stewart, Deputy Bill Fraser, Deputy 
Pauline Halliday, Brian Harris, Michael Henderson-Begg, Deputy Keith 
Knowles, Robert Merrett and Chris Punter. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document PackAgenda Item 3

Page 1



2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
There were no declarations.  
 

3. TERMS OF REFERENCE  
In accordance with the Order of the Court of Common Council, of 6 December 
2012, the Committee considered the terms of reference prior to its submission 
to the Court at its meeting in April 2013.  
 
RESOLVED – That the Terms of Reference be approved prior to its submission 
to the Court of Common Council meeting in April 2013 subject to including the 
following text after the appointment of the Director of Markets and Consumer 
Protection: 
 
‘,in consultation with the Port Health and Environmental Services Committee 
and the Licensing Committee,’ 
 
 

4. PUBLIC MINUTES  
The public minutes of the meeting held on 20 November 2013 were approved.  
 
AT THE REQUEST OF SOME MEMBERS THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA 
CHANGED AND THE PUBLIC WERE EXCLUDED TO CONSIDER ITEMS 8- 
15 PRIOR TO THE CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS 5 - 7 
RESOLVED: That under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of exempt 
information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
 

Summary of matters considered whilst the public were excluded 
 

9. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES  
The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 20 November 2012 were 
approved.  
 

10. PROVISION OF ADDITIONAL FISH HANDLING FACILITIES - 
BILLINGSGATE MARKET  

 A joint report of the Director of Markets and Consumer Protection and the City 
Surveyor was considered and agreed.  

 
 
11. SMITHFIELD LEASE NEGOTIATIONS  
 A discussion took place on the Smithfield lease negotiations and various 

questions were raised by Members.  
 
 
12. TENANCIES AT WILL GRANTED  
 A report of the Director of Markets and Consumer Protection was received.  
 
 
 

Page 2



13. DEBT ARREARS MARKETS - PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2012  
A report of the Director of Markets and Consumer Protection was received.  
 
 

14. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  

 A question was raised in relation to banners outside Billingsgate Market.   
 
 
15. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 

AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  

 There were no urgent items.  
 

The public were re-admitted for the remaining items of business 
 

5. MARKETS BUSINESS PLAN UPDATE  
A report of the Director of Markets and Consumer Protection updating Members 
on the progress in achieving the objectives set out in the annual Business Plan 
for the 2nd period in 2012/13 (August-November inclusive) was considered.  
 
The principal subjects covered in the report were: 
 

• Retail Market Campaign Reviewed – Love your Market 

• Promotion of the Markets 

• Progress report on Markets Byelaws 

• Retention of Food Standards Agency (FSA) Approval    
• Crossrail 

• Billingsgate Roof Renewal Project 

• Spitalfields Health and Safety Plan 

• Sickness update 

• Finance update 
 
In response to a question by a Member regarding the sickness absence 
statistics it was noted that staff had been off sick due to a number of reasons 
i.e. scheduled operations; a chronic lung condition; stress; depression and 
musculoskeletal injuries. Those individuals that were off sick were being 
managed thoroughly through the sickness absence management procedure.  
 
RECEIVED  
 

6. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
 
Vauxhall Cross 
 
In response to a question by a Member, the Director undertook to ascertain 
whether the road closure, following the helicopter crash incident two weeks 
ago, had any impact on trading at Spitalfields.  
 

Page 3



Farmers Market 
 
In relation to a question by a Member about holding a Farmers Market in the 
Guildhall Yard the Director explained he would speak separately to the 
Member. 
 
 

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
There were no urgent items.  
 
 
 
 

 
 
The meeting ended at 12.58pm 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Rakesh Hira 
 tel. no.: 020 7332 1408 
rakesh.hira@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 4



   

   

  

 

Committee(s): Date(s):  

Markets Committee 28 February 2013  

 

Subject: 

Enforcement Activity at Smithfield Market 

 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Director of Markets & Consumer Protection 

For Information 

 

 

Summary  

 

This report advises your Committee of Enforcement Activity carried out 

by the Enforcement Team within my Department, and the Food Standards 

Agency at Smithfield Market during the four month period from 1
st
 

October 2012 to 31 January 2013. 

 

It also provides information on the Food Standard Agency’s review of the 

delivery of official controls; a consultation being carried out by the Health 

& Safety Executive and the Department for Environment, Food and Rural 

Affairs and the current horsemeat in beef situation. 

 

The Food Standards Agency’s (FSA) Lead Veterinarian has reported that 

there is currently one stall on the FSA’s Cause for Concern list.   

 

In respect of enforcement under the Health & Safety at Work etc Act 

1974, it should be noted that there has been a decrease in the level of 

compliance, particularly in respect of the wearing of personal protective 

equipment by Market customers, which is considered to be a consequence 

of a busy Christmas period.   

 

 

Recommendations 

I recommend that your Committee notes the content of this report. 

 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



   

   

  

 

Main Report 

Background 

 

1. This is the twenty eighth such report submitted to your Committee. The 

attached table (Appendix 1) gives a more detailed breakdown of Health & 

Safety enforcement activity for the four month period, but without 

releasing the names of tenants to whom warnings were issued. The table 

(Appendix 2) shows the Health & Safety enforcement activity over a 

twelve month period.   

 

Current Position 

 

2. As a result of FSA enforcement (Appendix 3), the FSA’s Lead 

Veterinarian has reported the following: 

 

Currently there is one stall on the Cause for Concern list.   

Cause for Concern establishments 

Reeve & Co have appealed against the verdict of Westminster Crown 

Court which found them guilty of obstructing an official veterinarian from 

undertaking an audit.  The appeal is due to be heard over at Southwark 

Crown Court on 27 February 2013. 

 

3. The Food Standards Agency is currently reviewing how local authorities 

monitor and secure business compliance with food law.  The review is 

evaluating the effectiveness of the current delivery model and considering 

the scope for making improvements.   

 

4. The Food Standards Agency’s research suggests that there may be 

inconsistencies over the way controls are being delivered.  The review will 

look at all food safety and food standards controls undertaken by local 

authorities.  This will include food hygiene and food safety issues for food 

composition and labelling, food traceability and imports, and the adequacy 

of laboratory and analytical support.  It is anticipated that the review will 

be completed later this year. Consultation on the recommendations will 

take place from September 2013 to March 2014. 

 

5. Members will be aware from the previous report that the delivery of Health 

& Safety enforcement by local authorities is being reviewed by the 

Government.  In December 2012 the Health & Safety Executive (HSE) 

Page 6



   

   

  

 

published a consultation document setting out proposals for a national local 

authority enforcement code.  The code has been developed in response to 

Professor Löfstedt’s report “Reclaiming health and safety for all”, an 

independent review of Health and Safety legislation commissioned by the 

Minister for Employment. The report recommended that the Health & 

Safety Executive is given a stronger role in directing local authority health 

and safety enforcement activity.  Should the proposals in the consultation 

document be implemented, local authorities will be directed to targeting 

interventions on those activities that give rise to the most serious risks, or 

where hazards are least well controlled, reserving unannounced pro-active 

inspections only for the activities and sectors published by the Health & 

Safety Executive, or where intelligence suggests risks are not being 

effectively managed. 

 

6. The Health & Safety Executive has published in its consultation a list of 

activities/sectors for pro-active inspections by local authorities and advised 

that only these activities falling within the published list should be subject 

to pro-active inspection.  The list indicates wholesale premises where high 

risk activities, such as working at height, cutting machinery, lifting 

equipment and workplace transportation take place.  Following the 

consultation it is likely that the code will be published in its current form.  

My officers at Smithfield Market will target health and safety interventions 

in a manner which will enable the City of London to demonstrate 

compliance with the code. 

 

7. In November 2012 the Department for Environment, Food and Rural 

Affairs launched a consultation document regarding forthcoming changes 

to food labelling legislation. The consultation seeks views on the 

Government’s plans to make impending domestic legislation to enact the 

Food Information to Consumers (FIC) Regulations, (EU) Number 

1169/2011.  The aim of the Regulations is to improve the information 

provided to consumers so that they are able to make more informed 

choices about the food they buy, and to update legislation to reflect current 

industry practice and consumer changing information needs.  It is proposed 

that the new food labelling legislation will be phased in from January 2014 

and my officers at Smithfield will work with Smithfield Market traders to 

ensure they are aware of their duties to achieve compliance. 

 

8. Members will be aware of the on-going situation regarding the 

identification of horsemeat and equine (horse) DNA in beef products being 

offered for sale in the United Kingdom, together with porcine (pig) DNA 

being found in halal products.  To provide reassurance, investigations by 

the Smithfield Enforcement Team have taken place and it has been 

Page 7



   

   

  

 

established that no businesses on Smithfield Market are being supplied by 

the named companies in the Republic of Ireland.  Additional investigations 

will continue, supported by a species authenticity sampling programme, the 

findings of which will be reported back to Members in the next report. 
 

9. During the period officers at Smithfield met with the Food Standards 

Agency’s head of local authority enforcement division to discuss/identify 

areas for collaborative joint work at Smithfield Market.  It was agreed that 

the first phase of collaborative work would focus on meat delivery 

vehicles, picking up and transporting product from Smithfield Market.  The 

aim being to increase awareness of food safety requirements amongst 

delivery vehicle operators.  A leaflet has been developed jointly between 

the City of London and the Food Standards Agency, and was distributed by 

my officers at Smithfield during the first week of February 2013.  Follow 

up work to verify compliance will take place later this year and the 

outcome of the initiative will be reported to your Committee. 
 

10. Over the four month period from 1 October 2012 to 31 January 2013 

enforcement has continued under the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 

1974. This is detailed in paragraph 10 (Formal Action). 

 

Formal Action  

 

11. The FSA’s Lead Veterinarian has advised that the following actions have 

been taken against traders: 

 

352 enforcement actions taken: 

 

• 311 verbal advice- including 4 ABP related: 2 for disposing ABP with 

general waste and 2 for dispatch documentation missing 

• 39 written advice 

• 1 Hygiene Improvement Notice ( HACCP records) 

• 1 “ Agreement to Destroy Food Notice” due to over temperature 

 

Other relevant action during this period: 

 

• An improvement in the use of hats/hairnets has been noticed although 

compliance is still not satisfactory. 

• Only a few issues regarding meat temperatures were recorded, as 

expected during this time of the year. 

• Regular meetings have been set up between the City of London 

Corporation and FSA. 

Page 8



   

   

  

 

• FSA team is waiting for advice from their legal team regarding the 

enforcement of unattended meat in the common parts of the market. 

 

12. My officers in the Smithfield Enforcement Team have taken the following 

action against traders: 

 

• Verbal advice was given on 97 occasions for Health & Safety 

infringements, e.g. not wearing personal protective equipment. 

 

Overall, the traders have maintained an acceptable standard in the wearing 

of personal protective equipment, e.g. safety hats, shoes, chain mail gloves, 

etc, with Market customers accounting for the increase observed. However, 

 it should be noted that there has been a decrease in the level of compliance, 

particularly in respect of the wearing of personal protective equipment by 

Market customers, which is considered to be a consequence of a busy 

Christmas period  

 

13. Food Hygiene enforcement is governed by the FSA under the Compliance 

Code for Regulators. It will continue to be applied to Food Business 

Operators in the Market. This code is also applied when undertaking 

Health & Safety enforcement, along with the Public Protection Service 

Policy Statement on Enforcement, as this is a statutory duty of the City. 

 

Conclusion 
 

14. There are no current trends that can be identified, but interventions will 

continue to ensure that Market traders meet statutory requirements. 

 

Page 9



   

   

  

 

Background Papers: 

 

Please note: the anonymous numbering system used for the stalls in 

Appendices 1 and 2 now differs from Appendix 3.  The Food 

Standards Agency has imposed its own anonymous numbering 

system (Appendix 3) which is different from that used by the 

City’s enforcement team for Health and Safety enforcement 

activity. 

 

Appendix 2: Please note that the comparison table includes Food Hygiene data 

from 1 February 2012 to 31 March 2012.  The period from 1 April 

2012 shows Health & Safety data only.  

 

 

Appendix 1: Table showing breakdown of Health & Safety enforcement 

activity during the four month period of 1 October 2012 to 31 

January 2013 (inclusive). 

Appendix 2: Comparison table showing Health & Safety enforcement activity 

summary for the period 1 February 2012 to 31 January 2013. 

Appendix 3: Table showing breakdown of Food Hygiene enforcement activity 

during the period 1 October 2012 to 31 January 2013 (inclusive). 

 

 

 

 

Contact: 

Jon Averns 
0207 332 1603 
jon.averns@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 10



APPENDIX A.1

Stall
Verbal 

advice

Written 

advice

Formal 

Notices

Referred for Investigation 

and possible prosecution

24 1

28 1

31 3

32 3

40 1

Combination of Market 

tenants and customers
97

Each company has been allocated a number, so that the above information remains confidential. The number allocated to the company will remain the same in each

period, and this will demonstrate whether companies are improving or whether they are continuing to fail to comply with the Regulations.

Health & Safety 

2. Defective work equipment relates to breaches of:  The Provision and Use of Work Equipment Regulations 1998

3. Health & Safety Advice relates to breaches of:  The Personal Protective Equipment at Work Regulations 1992

Reason

Health & Safety 

Health & Safety 

Health & Safety 

HEALTH & SAFETY ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY SUMMARY FOR LONDON CENTRAL MARKETS                                           

1 October 2012 to 31 January 2013

1. Health & Safety Management System relates to breaches of:  The Management of Health & Safety at Work Regulations 1999

Health & Safety 

Health & Safety 

P
age 11



P
age 12

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Stall A B C D A B C D A B C D A B C D A

1 1

2 1 1 1

3 1 2

4 3 10 1

5 1 1

6 1 1 2 4

7 1 1 2

8 1

9

10 11 1 1 2

11 1 2 1

12 1

13 4 1 1 2 1

14 1

15 1

16 2 1 2 1

17 1 1 1

18 1

19 1 2 1 1

20 2

21 1 1

22 1 3

23 1

24 1 1 1

25 5 1

26

27 2 2 1 1 1 1

28 6 1 5

29

30

31 1 2

32 1 1 1

33 1 1 1

34 2 1 2 1 1

35 1

36

37 2 1 1 2 1

38 2 1

39

40 5 1 8 4 2

41 1 1

42

43

July to Sept 09June to Sept 09 Oct to Dec 08 Jan to Mar 09 Apr to Jun 09

Page 13



HEALTH SAFETY ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY SUMMARY  

SMITHFIELD MEAT MARKET - 1 OCTOBER 2012 to 31 JANUARY 2013

APPENDIX A.2

Key A: C: Formal notices

B: D: Recommended for prosecution

Stall TOTAL

A B C D A B C D A B C D

1 0

2 0

3 0

4 0

5 0

6 0

7 0

8 0

9 0

10 1 1

11 0

12 0

13 0

14 0

15 0

16 2 2

17 0

18 1 1

19 0

20 0

21 1 1

22 0

23 0

24 1 1

25 0

26 0

27 0

28 1 1

29 0

30 0

31 3 3

32 3 3

33 1 1

34 0

35 1 1

36 0

37 0

38 0

39 0

40 1 1

41 1 1

42 0

43 0

44 2 2

45 1 1

46 0

TOTAL 0 4 0 0 0 7 0 0 9 0 0 0 20

Verbal advice

Written advice

Feb 12 to May 12 June 12 to Sept 12 Oct 12 to Jan 13

The following information shows the breakdown of the enforcement activity.  Each company has been allocated a number, so that 

the information remains confidential.  The number that has been allocated to the company remains the same, and this will 

demonstrate whether companies are improving or whether they are continuing to fail to comply with the Regulations.                                                                                                                              

Please note that the figures for the period February 2012 to March 2012 includes Food Hygiene contraventions.

Page 14



FSA ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY SUMMARY - SMITHFIELD MEAT MARKET                           

1 JUNE 2012 - 31 JANUARY 2013 

APPENDIX A.3

Key A: C: Formal notices

B: D: Detention of food notices/Agreement to destroy food

Stall TOTAL

A B C D A B C D

1 1 1

2 21 4 6 17 12 60

3 17 2 2 2 23

4 2 2 4

5 4 9 13

6 2 2 4

7 1 1

8 4 3 7

9 10 10

10 1 3 4

11 29 3 3 5 40

12 11 4 15

13 1 2 14 17

14 16 16

15 1 2 5 8

16 1 4 5

17 2 1 14 1 18

18 6 6

19 4 1 11 1 17

20 2 2

21 7 4 2 13

22 24 5 1 3 33

23 14 1 9 3 27

24 6 28 34

25 3 1 4

26 13 13

27 13 1 6 21 41

28 13 8 21

29 2 5 7

30 7 7

31 32 3 12 10 57

32 2 3 6 11

33 1 2 3

34 27 2 3 8 4 44

35 2 3 5

36 5 22 1 28

37 7 14 21

38 9 2 24 6 1 42

39 10 1 11

40 10 6 16

41 3 1 2 6

42 8 3 3 14

43 6 1 7

TOTAL 316 18 0 50 311 39 1 1 737

The following information shows the breakdown of the enforcement activity. Each company has been allocated a number, so

that the information remains confidential. The number that has been allocated to the company remains the same, and this will

demonstrate whether companies are improving or whether they are continuing to fail to comply with the Regulations.

Verbal advice

Written advice

June 12 to Sept 12 Oct 12 to Jan 13

Page 15



Key A: C: Formal notices

B: D: Detention of food notices/Agreement to destroy food

Stall TOTAL

A B C D A B C D A B C D

1 1 1

2 21 4 6 17 12 60

3 17 2 2 2 23

4 2 2 4

5 4 9 13

6 2 2 4

7 1 1

8 4 3 7

9 10 10

10 1 3 4

11 29 3 3 5 40

12 11 4 15

13 1 2 14 17

14 16 16

15 1 2 5 8

16 1 4 5

17 2 1 14 1 18

18 6 6

19 4 1 11 1 17

20 2 2

21 7 4 2 13

22 24 5 1 3 33

23 14 1 9 3 27

24 6 28 34

25 3 1 4

The following information shows the breakdown of the enforcement activity. Each company has been allocated a number, so that the

information remains confidential. The number that has been allocated to the company remains the same, and this will demonstrate whether

companies are improving or whether they are continuing to fail to comply with the Regulations.

Verbal advice

Written advice

June 12 to Sept 12 Oct 12 to Jan 13 Feb 13 to May 13

P
age 16



26 13 13

27 13 1 6 21 41

28 13 8 21

29 2 5 7

30 7 7

31 32 3 12 10 57

32 2 3 6 11

33 1 2 3

34 27 2 3 8 4 44

35 2 3 5

36 5 22 1 28

37 7 14 21

38 9 2 24 6 1 42

39 10 1 11

40 10 6 16

41 3 1 2 6

42 8 3 3 14

43 6 1 7

TOTAL 316 18 0 50 311 39 1 1 736

P
age 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8

Page 19

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Page 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Public Minutes
	4 Enforcement Activity at Smithfield Market
	EA Appendix A1 - March 2013
	EA Appendix A2 Oct 12 - Jan 13
	EA Appendix A3 - March 2013

	8 Non-Public Minutes
	10 Write-Off of Bad Debt - Seatek (UK) Ltd

